ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON ENERGY
April 5, 2018
1:26 p. m

DRAFT

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Adam Whol, Chair
Representative |Ivy Spohnhol z, Vice Chair
Representative Matt C aman

Representati ve John Lincoln

Represent ati ve DeLena Johnson
Representative Jennifer Johnston
Represent ati ve George Rauscher

MVEMBERS ABSENT

COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO. 382
"An Act creating the Railbelt Electrical System Authority; and
relating to the duties of the Regulatory Comm ssion of Al aska."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 382

SHORT TITLE: RAILBELT ELEC. TRANSM SSI ON AUTHORI TY
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) WOOL

02/ 21/ 18 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 21/ 18 (H) ENE, L&C

03/ 27/ 18 (H) ENE AT 10: 15 AM CAPl TOL 17

03/ 27/ 18 (H) -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 29/ 18 (H) ENE AT 10: 00 AM BARNES 124

03/ 29/ 18 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 29/ 18 (H) M NUTE( ENE)

04/ 05/ 18 (H) ENE AT 10: 15 AM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

ROBERT PI CKETT, Commi ssioner, Chair
Regul at ory Conm ssion of Al aska (RCA)

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE -1- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity & Economi c Devel opnent
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 382.

JULI E ESTEY

Director of External Affairs

Mat anuska El ectric Associ ation

Pal mer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 382.

M KE CRAFT

Al aska Envi ronnental Power, LLC

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 382.

STEVE KONKEL, MD
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 382.

KERRY W LLI AVS

Al aska Climate Action Network

Eagl e River, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 382.

BECKY LONG
Tal keet na, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 382.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1: 26: 32 PM

CHAIR ADAM WOOL called the House Special Committee on Energy
neeting to order at 1:26 p.m Representatives Wol, Spohnhol z,
Johnston, Johnson, and Lincoln were present at the call to
order. Representati ves Rauscher and Caman arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

" #hb382
HB 382- RAI LBELT ELEC. TRANSM SSI ON AUTHORI TY

1: 27: 03 PM

CHAI R WOOL announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 382, "An Act creating the Railbelt Electrical

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE - 2- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



System Authority; and relating to the duties of the Regulatory
Conmi ssi on of Al aska. ™"

1:27: 31 PM

ROBERT PI CKETT, Conmm ssioner, Chair, Regulatory Conm ssion of
Al aska (RCA), Departnent of Commerce, Comunity & Economc
Devel opnent, (via teleconference) stated that he had been a
Conm ssioner with the RCA since 2008 and had served as the
Chairman on three different occasions, including the tineframe
in which the letter to the Al aska State Legislature had been
i ssued on June 30, 2015. He offered his belief that this was a
very tinely hearing as there were a lot of issues yet to be
resol ved. He allowed that there was sonme criticism of the
process to date, that it was going too slow, and perhaps the
| egi sl ature should take a nore aggressive stance at this point

and begin to mandate certain structures. He expressed caution
that not everything that had been said was entirely contexted
properly. He expressed his understanding for the frustration,

specifically from the potential sponsors of renewable energy
projects and the transm ssion system He pointed out that the
earlier testinony from Janet Reiser identifying the pancaking
transm ssion rights was entirely correct.

MR. PICKETT pointed out that three of the recomendations from
RCA directly addressed a |lot of these issues, noting that RCA
had set tinelines for reporting fromthe inpacted utilities. He
opined that there was "a very bal kanized system that from the
time | cane on the comm ssion in 2008, my overriding inpression

was just non-stop fighting." He offered sonme of the history
anong the older utilities wth Jlong term power purchase
agr eenents. He added that the interaction anong the utilities
was "not particularly helpful in many occasions.” He said that

earlier concerns for the availability of natural gas from 2007 -
2009 brought up issues that shaped the environnent. He reported
that the Legislature had invested about $800,000 to find a
rational, wunified approach to energy, which had very limted
success. He discussed the following two |egislative sessions
which attenpted work with the |1SO (Independent System Operator),
USO (unified system operator), or Transco functions. He
reported that, since the utilities went off the Chugach system
and created their own system there had been nore than $1.5
billion in new generation investnent by the Railbelt utilities.
He explained that per the nature of Al aska statutes, once a
utility made a prudent investnent, each wutility could nake
decisions regarding what was deened best for their own
rat epayers. He noted that the RCA |acked any decision-nmaking

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE - 3- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



power over what transmission or generation was built. He
pointed out that this had resulted in over-generation capacity
in the Railbelt. He said that the likelihood of any significant
new generation on an economc basis in the next decade was
probably slim or none. He cited the first of three
recommendations from the RCA: the creation of an independent
transm ssion conmpany to rationalize transm ssion assets, and

create a nore uniform system wi de tariff. He shared an update
for the likelihood of a filing for a certificate of public
conveni ence and necessity. He enphasized that nmerit order

econom ¢ dispatch was inportant, although it was a very
conplicated process to get disparate utilities to work on a
ti ght pooling agreenent. He expressed concern for the current
| ack of enforceable reliability standards in the Railbelt. He
reported that voluntary standards had been filed with RCA in the
fall of 2013, and wthin four nonths, those standards were
i gnor ed. He said that there was a lot of initial controversy
guestioning the statutory or regulatory authority of the
commi ssion over reliability standards. He declared that the RCA
had certificate power, and that it was necessary to be fit,
willing, and able to hold the certificates. He added that, by
and large, the utilities had "done an excellent job keeping the

lights on." He noted that the voluntary standards had sone
gapi ng hol es, particul arly in t he area of critica
infrastructure protection, which covered physical and cyber
security issues. He shared that a safeguard review had been

conducted, and that all six of the utilities had voluntarily
participated in the two-and-a-half-day review, even as it was

somewhat disruptive to their operations. He shared that it was
his intention, after the filing of the voluntary standards in
m d-April, to open a rule making docket on what was on file and

to proceed to incorporate that into the regulations on an
enforceable basis. He said that would allow for identifying the
additional physical and cyber security areas needed to be
addr essed.

1:36:12 PM

CHAIR WOOL referenced the letter from the Regulatory Comm ssion
of Alaska (RCA) dated June 30, 2015, [Included in nenbers

packets] in which the RCA requested two reports, one from
Septenber 30, 2015, and another from Decenber 31, 2015.
Representative Wol asked if any other reports been submtted
after these.

MR PICKETT stated that several reports had been voluntarily
submtted throughout 2016 and 2017, and that the |atest fornmal

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE - 4- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



action had been in August, Septenber, and Cctober of 2017. They
were requested to conme to a public nmeeting and present a forma
update on the three key itens [in the June 30, 2015 letter].

1: 37: 35 PM

CHAIR WOOL asked if the RCA was getting the reports in a tinmely
manner .

MR PICKETT opined that he didn't believe the utilities were
dragging their feet, and he expressed appreciation that they

were bringing in $1.5 billion dollars in new generation capita
expendi t ur es. In addition, there were several depreciation
studies and rate cases which were very tine consum ng. He
pointed out that the utilities were also figuring out their own
operational protocols. He nmentioned that the talent pool in
Al aska for technical operating abilities and managenent of these
assets was "fairly thin." Due to a lack of staffing, when the
utilities were assigned a task that often neant that that they
were delaying other projects. He noted that, although the

process would be too slow for sonme, these were very conplicated
i ssues. He offered an exanple of a settlenent process for type
power pooling where there were three different entities, trying
to relate that back to their generation stacks, how things were
going to be dispatched, and how the conpensation factors were
going to be played in. He pointed out that, with several noving
variables, it was not as easy as it mght seem on the surface
He acknowl edged that this gave wutilities the incentive to
per haps nove slower than what the commission or outside parties
would like. He stated that the RCA would continue to keep the
pressure on.

CHAI R WOOL asked which of the requirenments or standards was the
nost difficult, controversial, or hardest to achieve.

1: 39: 37 PM

MR PI CKETT offered his belief that the reliability standard was
difficult; however, if the filing was nade in md-April and the
two sets of basic operating standards were reconciled, that was
a good step forward as it had been controversial wth many

di sputes for over three years. He pointed out that there were
still gaping holes and that there was not any critica
infrastructure protection. He noted the events of the Net Cap

substation in the Bay Area, the Ukrainian attacks, and the
| ndustrial Control system attacks, and declared that the attacks
had becone nore and nore pervasive. He added that the State of
Al aska bul k power systens, even as a snmall system was in the

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE -5- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



crosshairs of various state actors and a whole series of
advanced persistent threats, all of which would be challenging
nmovi ng forward. He offered his belief that the Transco issue
was going to be an economically driven issue, as all the
utilities had different concerns and different roles that
transm ssi ons pl ay. He offered an exanple for AEL&P, which had
very few transm ssion assets but a fairly heavy [ oad. He said
that this would have a different set of circunstances than that
of Homer Electric, Golden Valley, and WMitanuska wth these
transm ssion assets spread over a nuch |arger area. He added
that the economc case for each one of them was going to be
different. He shared that RCA started with the assunption in
the legislative report that there was not going to be any state
appropriations for transm ssion or other types of activities due

to state budget constraints. The conm ssion does not have the
power to transfer assets from one entity to another, as the
utilities had property rights, and, in statute, they were

guaranteed to be able to collect in rates what it would take to
pay for these assets.

1: 41: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSTON stated that one of the driving factors
was the econom c dispatch. She noted the many chall enges facing
the utilities and the overbuilding of production capabilities

She said that they had nessages from people who had renewable
energy sources who had not been able to participate online with
the Railbelt as I|ndependent Power Producers (IPPs). When the
econonmi ¢ dispatch question was addressed, it was necessary to
have a spin rate; yet, when there was this overproduction of
energy, how would that issue be resol ved.

MR. PICKETT asked Representative Johnston if she neant bringing
on nore renewabl e energy.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSTON replied that nost renewable energy,
except hydro and the others that were not available in the
Rai | belt, were intermttent; hence, a spin rate was necessary.
She added that there were various costs of spin rates depending
on the utility, offering as an exanple, a utility that had a
renewabl e I PP which nust design its spin rate to conpensate for
the intermttent power. She asked whether trying to arrive at
one Railbelt system with econom c dispatch was one of the nost
significant issues as the cost of production had expanded the
cost throughout the Railbelt.

1:43: 44 PM

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE - 6- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



MR. PICKETT explained that the anmpbunt of capital investnent had
been expanded nore than in generations throughout the Railbelt.
He added that, at the sane time, nore efficient generation had
been created regarding natural gas generation. This reduced the
anount of fuel consunption by 25 to 30 percent. He nused that,
regarding the intermttency and variability issues and bar
support with voltage support at different points in the system
the renewables had a nore difficult tine with neeting that as
they were not dispatchable all the tinme, as was possible wth

nost fossil fuel generation. He declared that the states wth
the nost success for use of nore renewabl es had enbraced sone
form of a renewable portfolio standard or specific goals. He

offered an exanple of Texas, as it was the leading state for
wi nd production. He explained that Texas had established a date
for 11,000 nmegawatts of wnd energy. The region-w de
i ndependent system operator, Electric Reliability Council of
Texas (ERCOT), was directed by the Texas legislature to create a
mechanism to put the transmssion in the areas of Wst Texas to
get it to the populated areas of the state. He asked if Al aska
was W lling to enbrace a renewabl e portfolio standard.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSTON pointed out that Alaska differed in
popul ati on from Texas.

MR. PI CKETT expressed his agreenent.
1:45: 36 PM

CHAIR WOOL reflected that Representative Johnston had nentioned
access, which was an issue for the IPPs regarding rates and the
charges to access the system

MR. PICKETT interjected that a corollary issue was for what the
| PPs woul d be paid per kilowatt hour.

CHAIR WOOL nused that this tied into spinning reserve and
offered his belief that the State of Al aska had declared a goa

to reach a certain percentage of renewables by a certain year
even though this was not referenced in recent testinony. He
pointed out that, as other states had been able to acconplish
this efficiently and cheaply, Al aska should not be an exception.
He asked if there would be a solution from the current GDS
Associ at es process.

MR. PICKETT replied that he wouldn't prejudge the final GDS
Associ ates report, and that he was |ooking forward to review ng

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE -7- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



it. He opined that it would largely depend on what happened to
the transm ssion assets and how they were managed goi ng forward.
He reflected on the potential creation of a Transco, and whet her
the transmi ssion assets renmmined in each of the utility service
ar eas. He added that as, by statue, the wutilities could
establish their own transmi ssion rates, there would continue to
be the chall enge of pancaking rates.

CHAI R WOOL expressed his desire to see the upcom ng reports.
1:48:21 PM

JULIE ESTEY, Director of External Affairs, Mtanuska Electric
Association (MEA), Palner, Alaska, stated that MEA opposed the
proposed bill, as they would prefer to continue wth the
regulatory request from the RCA to continue the voluntary
efforts which were working and maki ng progress. She stated that
"we do appreciate the pressure” and that, as the heat was on,
t hey accepted the chall enge. She presented a PowerPoint, slide
1 "What is the Railbelt?" and stated that it was an electric
system of six interconnected wutilities, an islanded grid
covering a very large geographic area although it served a

relatively small load. She pointed out that there was a | ot of
infrastructure serving very few ratepayers to cover the costs
She noted that all the wutilities were ‘public power’ and

answered to its nmenbers, wth no profit notive and no
shar ehol ders asking to share in a profit.

1: 51: 05 PM

CHAIR WOOL reported that testinony had indicated that mllions
had been saved through this | oose power pool agreenent, and he
asked where had the savings had been realized.

MS. ESTEY replied that there were several categories of rates,
which included the COPA, the cost of power adjustnent, and
i ncluded the cost of fuel and purchase power. She noted that,
as there were expenditures to cover the costs to serve the
menbers, any income from the power sales went back into the
bal anci ng account. She offered an exanple of a drop in the COPA
rate due to sales to other wutilities. She pointed out that
those values varied, and that MEA had seen those adjustnents
have real value to its nenbers. She pointed out that the RCA
closely reviewed the COPA for accuracy every quarter.

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE - 8- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



CHAIR WOOL asked for clarification that the portion of an
individual's billing designated to COPA expense woul d be reduced
if there were sales to another utility.

1: 53: 04 PM

M5. ESTEY stated that the total balancing account which went
into the revenue requirenment around the COPA was reduced and
then it was divided anong the nmenbers. She returned to slide 1,
and addressed the high reliability for the transm ssion system
which dealt wth the redundancy through generation and

transm ssi on pl anni ng. She explained that this was determ ned
by how a contingency was handl ed. She added that fuel was
expensive relative to the Lower 48, in sone cases alnost triple
the cost. She noted that 40 percent of the cost to the nenbers
was fuel

1:56: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSTON asked about the term of the nost recent
fuel contract.

MS. ESTEY said that it was a five-year contract.

CHAIR WOOL noted that if the Intertie with Fairbanks went down,
that did not really affect the reliability for MEA

M5. ESTEY replied that it was dependent on the issue, for how
much power was on the system and where it was conming or going
from She pointed out that this could result in a frequency
change that inpacted everyone, as the frequency threshold was
very narrow for fluctuations.

CHAIR WOOL asked about the disagreenents on the reliability
standards. He acknow edged that cybersecurity was an issue.

1:59:13 PM

M5. ESTEY reported that the first reliability standards were
filed when the Intertie was built, and these continue to evolve

as the system grows and adjusts. She stated that reliability
was keeping the lights on and that it depended on a |ot of
t hi ngs, including redundancy. She asked how much was i ntended

to be built, what was the benefit for building additional
redundancy into a system and did the nenbership want to pay for
this. She addressed spinning reserve, through generation, and
how wel|l that could be handl ed. She pointed out that there was

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE - 9- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



very little spinning reserve carried in the systens in the Lower
48, whereas in Alaska there was alnost 30 percent of spinning
reserve to ensure enough power if the generators stop. She
declared that this was the sticking point for the reliability
st andar ds.

2:01: 22 PM

M5. ESTEY advanced to slide 2, titled "Joint efforts have been
di scussed in the past. Wiat is different?" She reported that
in the past, the Railbelt utilities had cooperated well, even as
this was an economic benefit for the nenbers, the state, and the
regi on. She stated that there was new | eadership and that the
economcs were different, so that the proactive and voluntary
coordination was now unprecedented in the Railbelt. She
declared that the new generation options had made coll aboration
nore econom c, and that new | eadership had been working together
in a new era of cooperation. She stated that they wanted to
t ake advantage of the natural cohesion in the Railbelt and nmake
nore of these agreenents contractual to outlive politics. She
added that a menber survey had shown that 70 percent wanted nore
renewables on the system wth support for paying nore. She
decl ared that there were nmany innovations avail abl e.

CHAIR WOOL referred to earlier testinony stating that there was
| ess demand for power in the Railbelt.

MS. ESTEY said that MEA was one of the few not seeing a decline
i n demand. She reported that, although MEA had added 1500 new
services during the last year, there was only a slight increase
in | oad. She acknowl edged that this could be a result of
conservation or warner weat her.

CHAIR WOOL nused that the system demand was | ess.

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER declared that the electrical bill had
been a | ot higher at his house in the past year.

2: 06: 06 PM

V. ESTEY referenced the letter witten by RCA to the
| egi slature in 2015 voicing concerns and urging the utilities to
take voluntary steps. She stated that the utilities were taking
those steps and it was worKking. She declared that there were
nore proposals to be presented to the RCA in the upcom ng year

and that it would becone clear whether statutory changes would
be required to nmake sone of these changes. She decl ared that

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE - 10- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



reliability, economc dispatch, and transm ssion, along wth
some other conplicating factors with sales of utilities, created
a lot of change. She stated that it was necessary to hear all
the input and ensure there were not any uni ntended consequences.

2:07: 38 PM

Ms. ESTEY noved on to slide 3, titled "The Railbelt utilities
are noving forward with voluntary efforts.” She shared that
first there was collaborative nodeling to create an economc
nodel for focused actions. She declared that this had included
full open disclosure for costs and other information. She said
that there had been a | oose Power Pool since 2015, which was a
vol untary power market which allowed utilities to buy and sel

power when it was nobst economic. She said that MEA had
recogni zed $16 million in benefits in the first year, resulting
in lower costs to its nenbers. She explained that this was

structured into a Tight Power Pool and, instead of voluntary, it
becane a contractual obligation for utilities to cone together
and share resources. She added that this would reduce the
anount of fossil fuels burned.

2:09:58 PM

CHAIR WOOL asked if the goal of the Tight Power Pool was to
incorporate all the utilities.

MS. ESTEY expressed her agreenent that this was the intention,
and that all the utilities had "been invited to that table."
She explained that 80 percent of the benefits were with getting
three of the Railbelt utilities on-1line. She added that the
Honer El ectric Associ ation and Gol den Val | ey El ectric
Association were both involved in these discussions and were
maki ng their decisions for the value to each of them She noted
that the addition of Golden Valley Electric Association would
achieve the next 20 percent of additional benefit, although the
benefit for the addition of Honmer Electric Association was
negl i gi bl e.

2:12: 00 PM

MS. ESTEY directed attention to slide 4, "Potential Economc
Benefits," which reflected the 2016 nodeling effort. She said

there was between $15 - $25 mllion in annual savings, wth
merit order dispatch. She reiterated that approximtely 80
percent of the value was from MLP, MEA, and Chugach in the tight
pool . She said that the addition of Golden Valley Electric

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE -11- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



Associ ation brought an additional 19 percent of savings. She
noted that there were still nore savings to be achi eved.

2:13:21 PM

M5. ESTEY shared slide 5, "Are the utilities taking too |ong?"
She shared a tineline that began in 2015 and included the RCA
letter and the |oose power pool; in 2016, the nodel was
devel oped reflecting the value of transactions; in 2017, there
was an MOU for the tight power pool; and in 2018, there was
further testing of economc dispatch, the RRC (Railbelt
Reliability Council) structure was filed with the RCA and the
tight power pool filing was made. She stated that the utilities
were developing tools for comrunication with each other and
t hei r nmenbers.

2:16: 46 PM

CHAIR WOOL reflected that the tineline on slide 5 could have
begun in 1995, per Robert Pickett, Conm ssioner of the RCA, and
he Ilisted events including the Railbelt Electrical Gid
Aut hority, 2008. He expressed his desire to highlight that this
had been going on far |onger than since 2015.

M5. ESTEY acknow edged that this was an excellent point and that
this was the source of much frustration. She admitted that the
reputation had been earned. She pointed out that this was now
stakehol der and utility driven, based on econom cs and what was
right for nenbers, as opposed to the earlier issues driven by
state agenci es. She noved on to slide 6, "The Uility Lens,"
and stated that the goals for Railbelt collaboration, which
i ncluded: burn the | east anmount of fuel, as 40 percent of costs
were for fuel, while only 6 percent was for admnistration;
manage and reinforce reliability, whi ch required an
enforceability mechanism reduce rate increases, even as the
increases in fuel, mterials, l|abor, and health benefits nade
sustained rate decreases doubtful; systemw de focus; open
access and clear path for independent power producers; and stand
up the RRC (Railbelt Reliability Council) and let it nmake
decisions. She listed the proposed nenbers of the RRC board as
t he stakehol der group that should be nmaki ng the deci sions.

CHAIR WoOL asked if all the utilities were confortable with a

governing body, with the utilities as the mnority, that nmade
policy deci sions.

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE -12- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



MS. ESTEY stated that the stakehol der driven process was pushing
the proposed GDS Associates nodel, with the utilities having
three of the nine seats on the RRC She decl ared that MEA was
supporti ve.

2:23: 06 PM

MS. ESTEY returned attention to slide 6, and listed the issues
inportant to MEA, which included a structure and solutions:

free of control from for-profit special interests; free from
instability caused by political cycles; free from conflicts of
interest; inclusive of many voices; transparent, collaborative

and deliberative to fully wunderstand inpacts to ratepayers;
firmy rooted in technical excellence and fiscal responsibility;
and with RCA oversight.

2:24.16 PM

M5. ESTEY noved on to slide 7, "Good Things are Happening
Everyday". She shared the 2017 acconplishnments at MEA, which
i ncl uded: safest year on record; rate case with less than 1
percent total bill inpact after a new power plant; new gas
contract to save nenbers $2 - $3 million, about $5 each nonth

for the typical nenber; outages were cut in half from 2016; net
nmetering nmenbers doubled; many renewable projects in the
pi peline, including solar and waste heat; and, $1 nillion given
back to the comunity by nmenbers voluntarily rounding up their
bills through Operation Round Up.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSTON reflected that this process had gone on
for the last forty years, yet there was still the issue of
wi nners and | osers. She acknowl edged that the conversation was
changing along wth the <changing of CEGs, although she
mai nt ai ned concerns for generation in the Railbelt, nore than
was necessary. She asked if the MEA co-op could be "nothball ed”
as profit was still built in to the nodel.

M5. ESTEY declared that they to be |ooking at the costs and
benefits, pointing out that all the new efficient generation was

replacing old generation. She stated that, although there was
addi ti onal power generation, they preferred to not use the
ol der, nore expensive generation. She shared that they | ooked

closely at the recovery of costs, including those on the power
pl ant and the transm ssion systemthrough the base rate.

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE - 13- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



CHAIR WOOL asked if a full system integrated with one spinning
reserve that could acconmobdate the fluctuations of nmany |PPs
woul d sol ve the spinning reserve problens for them

M5. ESTEY explained that their new power plant was able to help
regulate the wind, and, although it was a bit different than
spinning reserve, it was regulation for variable power. She
said that MEA |ooked forward to working with the |PPs through
these new structures to better wunderstand the costs and
benefits. She declared that a diversified energy portfolio was
a smart, long term strategy.

CHAIR WOOL asked about a plan if, at the end of the GDOS
Associ ates process, there was a recommendation to ARCTEC to
whi ch MEA di d not agree.

M5. ESTEY said that MEA was ready to nove forward |ooking for
solutions and was ready to present a solution to the RCA for its
approval .

2:34: 14 PM

M KE CRAFT, Alaska Environnental Power, LLC, reported that he
was the owner of the Delta Wnd Farm and he offered his belief

that the comments by Conm ssioner Picket "were right on. It was
a very fair analysis of where we are at." He said that the six
utilities on the Railbelt grid did a good service to the public
and were good at what they did. He said that he had no

conplaints for the way electricity was delivered to his house
and that he appreciated the service. He expressed concerns for
an | SO situation because his experience for the past 12 years
had shown him that there was an inherent self-build bias by the
utilities, even as he conceded that this was their job to "l ook
out for their shareholders.” He opined that, as the
sharehol ders of one wutility had no responsibility to the
shar ehol ders of another wutility, it was not realistic to expect

them to average out any inpact to the public. He reflected on
the issues which lead to his decision for where to locate his
wind farm He shared his belief that the three |argest

renewabl e energy projects in Alaska "were dead on arrival |ess
than a nonth ago at the RCA and nost of it had to do wth
integration and transm ssion issues." He suggested that it was
unfortunate that $240 mllion in private capital, as well as
t housands of jobs, was not invested in the State of Al aska. He
declared that this would send a signal that "Alaska's not really
open for business for the private sector to come in here and do
projects that do have public benefit." He declared the need for

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE - 14- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



a board for the 1SO which would mrror the description in the

proposed bill, otherwise, "we will be getting nore of what we've
already gotten,” which he opined had not gotten the state very
far. He reflected that sone of the issues stated by the Al aska

Power Producers Association were for self-direction, voluntary
coordination, no increase to their own ratepayers, free from
political cycles, and no conpetition. He expressed his concern

declaring that the 1SO had to be independent. He directed
attention to the state energy policy which stated that, by 2025,
the state should have 50 percent renewable [power] and it

encouraged private sector devel opnent. He stated that this was
not happeni ng. He declared that the state was in trouble with
the Environnmental Protection Agency, as it was necessary to
nodi fy the power plants at a cost of about $163 mllion. He

reported that the mlitary were concerned for personnel
stationed in Fairbanks. He opined that the larger issues would
not be addressed by a local utility. He directed attention to
his letter dated April 4, 2018 [Included in nenbers' packets].
He stated his support for HB 382.

CHAI R WOCOL asked if the proposed board structure was acceptabl e.

MR CRAFT replied that he Iliked the board description as
described in the proposed bill.

2:43:48 PM

CHAI R WOCOL opened public testinony.

2:44:10 PM

STEVE KONKEL reflected on the history of these issues, pointing
to testinony on another bill on February 2, 2016, with the sane
I ssues. He shared that there were sonme key concepts, noting

that rate payers had a fundanental interest in energy efficiency
and innovation, in a system which took full adventure of what
Al aska can do. He pointed to the savings from a possible nerger
of two utilities in the Anchorage area. He addressed econom c
di spatch, and expressed his agreenment wth Chairman Pickett,
that this was challenging and involved nerit order dispatch
which required rules. He reflected on the GDS Associates
testimony which stated that this worked in the Lower 48 because
it was a benefit to the whole system He reiterated that, as
merit order dispatch was part of econom c dispatch, the rules of
the road had to be approved by the RCA. He pointed out that the
scope of the GDS Associates process did not include integrated
resources planning. He noted that, as there was currently nore

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE - 15- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



capacity than necessary, there was not any worry for additiona

investnment in generation capacity. He stated that there was
concern for pancaking tariffs and investnents that need to be
made in transm ssion. He expressed his hope that the GDS

Associ ates process resulted in real investnent that could help
with a larger area to |oad balance and acconplish economc

dispatch in a way that would save mllions of dollars. He
suggested that this be viewed on a regional basis to better
i ncl ude cooperation. He asked that there be a focus on

rat epayers, renewabl es, innovation, and ways to do things in the
Rai | belt that m ght have statewi de benefits from investnents in
t echnol ogy.

2:49: 26 PM

KERRY WLLIAMS, Alaska Cimte Action Network, referenced a
letter to the commttee [Included in nenbers' packets]. He
guestioned the amount of renewable energy which could be brought
on-line. He pointed out that, even with the savings in cost per
kil owatt hour, the renewables were not accommobdated. He pointed
out that, as there was increased efficiency in the use of
electricity, the anmount of electricity consunption was
decreasing and there would not be a need for nore generation.
He noted that this did not include the issue of electric and
battery-operated vehicles, which were currently 2 percent of the
new vehicle total and doubling every year and a half. He said
that 100 percent of new vehicles would be electric within 10
years, and that this could be a challenge for generation
capacity. He said that this was an opportunity to |ower our
rates by taking advantage of electric vehicles and other storage
opportunities, but that, without HB 382, it would not happen

He decl ared his support for HB 382.

2:56: 01 PM

BECKY LONG reported that she had been following Railbelt
electric and transm ssion issues since the 1980s and had focused
on these specific issues since January 2011 when the Railbelt
Regi onal Integrated Resource plan was introduced. She stated
her support for HB 382 and offered her belief that a Railbelt
el ectrical transmi ssion authority was necessary to bring region
wide nerit order economc dispatch, a maxi num benefit to the
rat epayers. She added that she supported the independent system
operator (1SO concept stated in the proposed bill and that she
was confortable with this authority being a division of the RCA

noting that she was inpressed with their work. She offered her
belief that the wutilities would not succeed voluntarily in

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE - 16- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



getting together econom c dispatch and reliability standards on

their own. She declared that this process would benefit the
Rai | belt region. She stated that these were fast changing
times, and that the new transmssion and distribution
technologies could address the intermttencies of renewables
through the interconnectivity of the electrical systens. She

said that electric managenent could help to change the nature of
peaks and the need for peaking and stand by capacity. She added
t hat passive consunption was on the brink for the radical shift
due to the coming on line of information technology and smart
grid technol ogy. She noted that response and demand by the
consuner was an inportant trend. She stated that it was
possible for a nore flexible system wthout bringing nore
capacity on to the systemto neet peak denands.

2:58: 58 PM

CHAI R WOOL thanked everyone for adjusting their schedules. [HB
382 was held over]

#

2:59:18 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Commttee on Energy neeting was adjourned at 2:59 p.m

HOUSE ENE COWMM TTEE -17- DRAFT  April 5, 2018



